
 
 

 
Town of Discovery Bay  

Standing Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting 
 Agenda for October 17, 2018 - Pg.1 

 

          
 
NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
WEDNESDAY, October 17, 2018 
STANDING PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE REGULAR 
MEETING 3:30 P.M. 
Community Center 
1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard, Discovery Bay, California 
Website address: www.todb.ca.gov 
 

Parks and Recreation Committee Board Members 
Chair Bill Pease 

Vice-Chair Chris Steele 
 

A. ROLL CALL 
1. Call business meeting to order 3:30 P.M. 
2. Roll Call 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
During Public Comments, the public may address the Committee on any issue within the Committee’s 
jurisdiction which is not on the Agenda.  The public may comment on any item on the Agenda at the time that 
item is before the Committee for consideration.  Any person wishing to speak must come up to the 
designated location.  There will be no dialog between the Committee and the commenter.  Clarifying 
questions must go through the Committee. 
 

C. DRAFT MINUTES TO BE APPROVED 
1. August 15, 2018 Parks and Recreation DRAFT meeting minutes. 

 
D. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Discussion regarding the Recreation Services Department Annual Report.  
2. Discussion regarding Annual Recreation Fee Increases. 
3. Discussion regarding the Addition of a “Community Event” Category to the Rental Fee Structure. 
4. Discussion regarding the Additional Striping of the Community Center Parking Lot. 
5. Update regarding the Dog Park Improvements. 
6. Update regarding the Swimming Pool Renovations. 
7. Update regarding the Front Entrance Improvements. 

 
E. FUTURE DISCUSSION/AGENDA ITEMS 
 
F.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourn to the next Standing Parks and Recreation Committee meeting at the Community Center 
located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 

“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by the American 
with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code § 54954.2). Persons 
requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should contact the Town of 
Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the agenda packet are 
available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during normal business hours." 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 
President – Kevin Graves • Vice-President – Bill Mayer • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Bill Pease • Director – Chris Steele 

 

 

SDLF Gold-Level of Governance 

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
 

 
Town of Discovery Bay  

Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting 
 Minutes for August 15, 2018 - Pg.1 

 

          
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
WEDNESDAY, August 15, 2018 
STANDING PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE REGULAR 
MEETING 3:30 P.M. 
Community Center 
1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard, Discovery Bay, California 
Website address: www.todb.ca.gov 
 

Parks and Recreation Standing Committee Board Members 
Chair Bill Pease 

Vice-Chair Chris Steele 
 
A. ROLL CALL 

1. Call business meeting to order 3:30 P.M. – By Chair Pease. 
2. Roll Call – All present. 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
None 
 

C. DRAFT MINUTES TO BE APPROVED 
1. June 20, 2018 Parks and Recreation DRAFT meeting minutes – Approved.  

 
D. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Discussion regarding the update of the Fee Waiver Agreement/Odyssey of the Minds. 
Recreation Programs Supervisor Kaiser – Provided an update of the Fee Waiver Agreement/Odyssey of the 
Minds.  There was discussion regarding the renewal of Odyssey of the Minds agreement. 
2. Discussion regarding the update of the Summer Programs and Activities. 
Recreation Programs Supervisor Kaiser – Provided the details regarding an update to the Summer 
Programs and Activities related to the River Otters (finished their season and plan to make a presentation to 
the Board on September 5, 2018), swim lessons, adult swim, Movies in the Park, Summer Jam, Community 
Garden, and the 2

nd
 Annual Recreational Services Report (2

nd
 meeting in September).  There was 

discussion regarding the Community Garden and the Movies in the Park (attendance and the cost for the 
movies). 
3. Discussion regarding the update of the Dog Park Improvements. 
Recreation Programs Supervisor Kaiser – Provided the details of the Dog Park improvements related to the 
installation of the dog exercise hoops and sprinklers.  There was discussion regarding the 
sponsors/advertising. 
Public Comment Regarding: 

 Dog Park entrance improvements – concrete pad.   
There was discussion regarding the Dog Park; plan to close, rehab the Small and Large Dog Park, and 
during the time have a temporary location (in the fall). 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 
President – Kevin Graves • Vice-President – Bill Mayer • Director – Robert Leete • Director – Bill Pease • Director – Chris Steele 

 

 

Agenda Item C-1

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
 

 
Town of Discovery Bay  

Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting 
 Minutes for August 15, 2018 - Pg.2 

 

4. Discussion regarding the Front Entrance Lighting. 
Parks and Landscape Manager Miller – Provided the details regarding the Front Entrance Lighting related to 
the lighting (spot lighting), prime and paint stucco surface, landscaping and sprinkler repair.  There was 
discussion regarding the Front Entrance Improvements, and the RFPs for the project. 

 
E. FUTURE DISCUSSION/AGENDA ITEMS 

1. General Manager – Zone Analysis Scope of Work – Regular Board meeting for September 5, 2018. 
2. Vice-Chair Steele – Sponsorship (Tennis walls, Dog Park, Swimming Pool). 

 
F.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. The meeting adjourned at 4:02 p.m. to the next Standing Parks and Recreation Committee meeting at 
the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 
 
//cmc – 08-20-18 
http://www.todb.ca.gov/agendas-minutes 
 

Agenda Item C-1

http://www.todb.ca.gov/agendas-minutes


 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

Parks and Recreation Committee 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

October 17, 2018 

 

Prepared By:    Mac Kaiser, Recreation Programs Supervisor 
Submitted By:  Michael R Davies, General Manager 

 
Agenda Title 
 
Recreation Services Department Annual Report. 
 
 
Recommended Action 
 
Accept the 2017/18 Recreation Services Department Annual Report. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Town of Discovery Bay is responsible for providing recreational activities to the residents of the District.  The 
Community Center offers a wide variety of programs, services, and special events for all ages and will continue to 
develop programming that will stimulate, educate and enrich the lives of people within Discovery Bay that is 
complemented by a system of parks, recreation areas and other facilities aimed to encourage recreational and leisure 
time activities.   
 
An Annual Report is an important step in building a solid foundation for the development of professional recreation 
services that will enhance the everyday lives of the residents of the Town of Discovery Bay.  The attached report 
highlights the many accomplishments over the past year and Staff is proud to present the 2017/18 Recreation Services 
Department Annual Report. 
 
Accept the 2017/18 Recreation Services Department Annual Report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #   Category:         
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 
DRAFT 4 Recreation Annual Report FY17/18. 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: D-1 

Cinderella
Stamp



       

       

Recreation Services Department 

Annual Report 
 

Fiscal Year 2017-18   

Agenda Item D-1



 

2 
 

Introduction 

 

 

 

This has been another year of growth and change for the Recreation Services 

Department within the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District.  I would like 

to especially thank the residents of Discovery Bay for their support and participation in 

our recreation programs, activities and services.  I would also like to recognize the 

leadership and support of our Board of Directors along with our dedicated department 

staff who put an incredible amount of time and effort into providing a quality recreation 

experience for all our residents. 

This second annual report continues to build upon a solid foundation for the 

development of professional recreation services that will enhance the everyday lives of 

Discovery Bay residents.  We are committed to providing robust programs that capture 

the interest and participation of all age groups from toddlers to seniors.  In the coming 

year, staff, along with the Board of Directors and community members, will continue 

having important discussions that will focus on improving our parks, community center, 

recreation programs, community events, resources and funding.  

On behalf of the entire staff of the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District, 

we are proud to present the 2017-18 Recreation Services Department Annual Report 

and we look forward to another fun and exciting year ahead! 

 

 

Michael R. Davies 

Michael R. Davies, General Manager 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD 

 

  

Agenda Item D-1



 

3 
 

Department Accomplishments  

 

Recreation Services provides community based and age appropriate recreational 

programming for Discovery Bay residents and visitors.  The Discovery Bay Community 

Center acts as the hub for these activities and is complimented by a network of parks, 

fields and other recreational and education venues.   

 

Accomplishments, 2017-2018 
 

 Continued development of community based and age appropriate recreation 
programs, activities, and community-wide special events for Recreation Services.    

 Completed the Town’s first Recreation Services Department Annual Report.    

 Partnered with the Discovery Bay Lions Club in hosting a second community-
wide outdoor concert along with an inaugural “Paws on Parade” Dog Park event.  
These events generated just over $15,000 toward improvement projects to the 
Discovery Bay Community Center. Projects include renovations to the large 
community BBQ area and improvements to the dog park.   

 Developed and implemented written agreements between the Town of Discovery 
Bay and the following community organizations: Discovery Bay Lions Club, the 
Boy Scouts of America, and the River Otters Parents Booster Club.  

 Entered into an agreement with GreenPlay, Inc. to provide consulting services 
focused on generating revenue sources for the Community Center. 

 Continued expansion of regular and on-going part time/seasonal employee 
training programs to improve our level of service to program participants.   

 
Objectives, 2018-2019 

 

 Continued development of community relationships with local groups and 
organizations such as the Discovery Bay Lions Club, the River Otters Parent 
Booster Club, Discovery Bay Pickleball Club, Discovery Bay Chamber of 
Commerce, and the Contra Costa Sheriff’s Office in expanding community-wide 
programming and special events at the Discovery Bay Community Center. 

 Develop an action plan from the completion of “Phase One, Special Board 
Workshop” with GreenPlay, Inc.   

 Examine current pricing and cost recovery practices related to the Town’s 
Recreation programming and facility usage fees and develop a methodology that 
results in fair and consistent cost recovery.     

 Examine our current special interest recreational opportunities and look for new 
and creative ways to expand current offerings.   

 Expand available marketing avenues to help increase event and program 
participation.  
 

Agenda Item D-1



 

4 
 

Program & Activity Highlights for 2017-18 

 

Summer Jam Concerts 

In June 2017, the Town of Discovery Bay partnered with the Discovery Bay Lions Club 

to create a unique bi-annual community-wide “Summer Jam” event, which features 

many local vendors and business, shopping, food, and live music from local bay area 

bands who perform on a full-size professional stage.  Over 3,000 residents have 

participated in our three Summer Jam events.      

Proceeds from the Summer Jam events have funded community center improvement 

projects that to date include:   

 Purchase of a custom 16 x 20 outdoor movie screen. 

 Professional level sound system. 

 Repair and rebuilding of the brick BBQ. 

 Replaced broken concrete sections with new concrete surrounding the BBQ. 

 Added three new round metal picnic tables with matching umbrellas. 

 Installed new screening along the back-cyclone fencing. 

GreenPlay Workshop 

In November 2017, the Town of Discovery Bay entered into contract with GreenPlay, 

LLC for Phase 1 of a two-phase project related to identifying potential funding sources 

for the future planning and operational functions of the Discovery Bay Community 

Center and recreational programming.  In February, GreenPlay, LLC conducted a 

special session Board workshop, that along with staff, aided in identifying new potential 

funding sources that would better sustain recreation operations and services for the 

long term. The final report from GreenPlay, LLC provided an “action plan” that staff will 

utilize in the coming years to develop and implement additional programs, activities, 

and/or policies to improve the sustainability of the Town’s recreation services.   

“Paws on Parade” Dog Park Event 

Expanding on the success of the “Summer Jam” summer concerts, the Town, in 

partnership with the Discovery Bay Lions Club, developed and implemented an 

inaugural dog park special event in April that had nearly 60 participating dogs, a variety 

of animal related vendors, and county officials in attendance to support dog park 

improvements.  Improvement projects currently underway include:     

 Purchase of two (2) sets of dog agility hoops (one for each of the dog parks) 

 Purchase of a commercial grade display sign board 

 Replacement of dog friendly sprinkler heads throughout most of the dog park. 

Agenda Item D-1



 

5 
 

Marketing 

Activity Guides 

The primary marketing tool for the Recreation Division is the Discovery Bay Activity 

Guide, which is mailed to homes and businesses within the 94505-zip code in January, 

May, and September of each year.  Approximately 7,000 copies are produced each 

quarter with 6,363 mailed out.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Website & Facebook 

Staff has increased use of the Town’s Facebook page and website to promote our 

various recreation programs, activities and events occurring throughout the year.  

Currently, our Facebook page has over 2,000 followers.     

 

Movies in the Park 

This fiscal year was the first full season use, with monies raised from the inaugural 

Summer Jam, of the Town’s recently purchased inflatable outdoor movie screen and 

outdoor sound system.  Six family-oriented movies were shown evenings during the 

months of June, July, and August.  While attendance was generally lower than 

expected, there were several movies that had from 80-100 participants.   Staff has 

determined that frequent use of the Town’s Facebook page, electronic sign, and movie 

choice are key factors in improving attendance numbers.   

    

Agenda Item D-1



 

6 
 

Special Interest Class Offerings 

 

A variety of contract classes & activities were offered in 2017/18 and included those 

listed below:  

Youth Sports Programs 

Mommy/Daddy & Me Soccer 

Tot/Pre-Soccer 

Soccer 1:  Techniques & Teamwork 

Soccer 2:  Skillz & Scrimmages 

  

Youth Dance Programs 

Tiny Tots 

Kid’s Combo Dance 

Time to Tap 

 

Youth Camps 

Sculpt Clay Camp 

Beginning Archery 

Youth ART Camp 

Youth Sketch/Draw, Pencil, Charcoal, Paste Camp 

 

Tennis Camps & Programs 

Red Ball Club 

Orange Ball Club 

Juniors/Advanced Juniors Tennis 

Advanced Juniors Only 

 

Aquatic Programs 

Recreational Public Swim 

“Learn to Swim” Lesson Program 

Adult Lap Swim 

River Otters Swim Team 

Blended Learning Lifeguard Class 

Coast Guard Certified Safe Power Boat Handling 

 

Special Interest Programs 

Safety Driver’s Ed 

Smeared Paint Adult Paint Night 

Paint your Pet Party 

Coast Guard Approved Power Boat Class 

 

Agenda Item D-1



 

7 
 

Adult Programs 

Zumba by Karina 

Time to Tap 

Smeared Paint 

Line Dancing 

 

Affiliated Community Programs 

Card Groups 

Hand & Foot Adult Cards 

Duplicate Bridge Adult Cards 

Drop-in Pickleball 

Drop-in Tennis 

 

Library Connection 

 

In Partnership with the Contra Costa Library System, the Library Connection offers 

residents of Discovery Bay the opportunity to order a variety of library materials on line 

and have them delivered to the Discovery Bay Community Center for pick up.  

Discovery Bay residents may also utilize the book drop box located outside the 

Community Center as well.  This is a “free” service to Contra Costa residents. 

 

   

59 

539 

414 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

FY15/16 FY 16/17 FY 17/18

Library Connection 
Circulation 

Agenda Item D-1



 

8 
 

FY 2017/18 Participation Numbers 

 

Special Interest Classes 

The Recreation Division is responsible for offering a wide variety of classes and camps 

for all age levels.  These special interest programs include youth soccer, youth dance, 

youth and adult art and painting classes, youth tennis, Online Driver’s Ed course, adult 

Zumba classes, adult painting classes, swim lessons, and River Otters Swim Team.  To 

provide these programs, the Town contracts with a variety of independent instructors in 

order to maximize revenue and save on the costs of hiring additional staff.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1101 

1275 1273 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 17/18

Special Interest Classes 

In
d

iv
id

u
al

 P
ar

ti
ci

p
an

t 
N

u
m

b
er

s 

Fiscal Year 

Agenda Item D-1



 

9 
 

Aquatic Programs 

 

The Recreation Division is responsible for operating a small community pool located at 

the Discovery Bay Community Center offering community residents an opportunity for 

open recreational public swim running generally Memorial Weekend through Labor Day 

weekend.  Operating hours have been Thursdays through Mondays, 1PM-6PM 

weekdays, 12PM-6PM weekends.  The Pool is closed to open recreational swim 

Tuesdays and Wednesdays.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

872 843 

1826 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 17/18

Recreational Swim 

In
d

iv
id

u
al

 P
ar

ti
ci

p
an

t 
N

u
m

b
er

s 

Fiscal Year 

Agenda Item D-1



 

10 
 

Park and Facility Rentals  

 

The Recreation Division is responsible for managing the rental of all community parks 

and facilities under the jurisdiction of the Town.  This includes the Discovery Bay 

Community Center, various rooms within the community center, an event lawn area, a 

group BBQ area, and eight tennis courts.  Parks include Cornell Park and Ravenswood 

Park that contain BBQ areas, covered picnic areas, tennis courts, pickleball courts, and 

sports fields.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

184 

234 

302 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 17/18

Park & Facility Rentals 

To
ta

l I
n

d
iv

id
u

al
 R

e
n

ta
ls

 

Fiscal Year 

Agenda Item D-1



 

11 
 

Community Center Participation 

 

Our 2,500 square foot Community Center sits on seven and a quarter (7.25) acres and 

provides a variety of amenities that includes eight (8) tennis courts, of which six (6) are 

in playable condition, a dog park, an Event Lawn area, and a swimming pool.   

To provide a snap shot of the use of these facilities, staff has accumulated the following 

participation statistics based on the following criteria: 

Participation numbers for each amenity were taken hourly Monday through Friday, from 

4PM to close and Saturday/Sunday from 8AM to close throughout the fiscal year.  

Closing time is generally dusk and varies throughout the year.   

 

 

 

  

FY 17/18

Tennis Courts 3505

Event Lawn 6674

Dog Park 1544

Com Center 9645

3505 

6674 

1544 

9645 

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

Community Center Participation 
Statistics 

Agenda Item D-1



 

12 
 

Community-Wide Events 

 

Throughout the year, the Discovery Bay Community Center grounds serve as the 

staging area for a variety of local private and Town co-sponsored events.  Large 

community events (gatherings of more than 50 participants) are generally approved in 

advance for the entire calendar year by the Board each February.   

The following is a list of those events approved and for fiscal year 17/18: 

 Summer Jam Concert in the Park – September 

 American Red Cross Blood Drive - October 

 Scarecrow Festival & Movie in the Park – October 

 Discovery Bay Lions Club/Chamber Holiday Parade – December 

 Discovery Bay Lions Club Easter Egg Hunt – March  

 Paws on Parade Dog Park Event – April 

 Inaugural Discovery Bay Family & Friends Doubles Tournament - May 

 Discovery Bay Chamber Food Truck Round Up – April, May, June 

 Town of Discovery Bay 20th Anniversary Celebration – June  

 Summer Jam Concert in the Park – June 

 Friday Night Movies in the Park – June, July, and August 

Community User Groups 

 

Throughout the year, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Recreation Department 

provides a meeting place for a variety of common-interest groups, clubs, and loose knit 

gatherings. These participants generally use Town facilities at little or no cost.     

The following is a list of the most common groups utilizing the Discovery Bay facilities in 

fiscal year 17/18:   

 Pickleball – Cornell Park Pickleball Courts 

 Tennis – Community Center Tennis Courts 

 Hand & Foot Senior Card Group – Community Center  

 Duplicate Bridge Card Group – Community Center 

 Boy Scouts - Community Center 

 

Agenda Item D-1



 

13 
 

Fee Waivers  

The Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Board of Directors annually 

provides the opportunity to more adequately respond to the needs of the community by 

waiving or modifying regular fees and charges on a case-by-case basis.  Below are the 

groups and/or activities that the Town has accommodated this fiscal year.     

 

 

 

 

 

   

Agenda Item D-1



 

14 
 

CONCLUSION 

 

The Recreation Services Department of the Town of Discovery Bay CSD continues to 

act as the hub for activities for the Town of Discovery Bay. All of the work this past year 

would not be possible without the generous support and dedication of:  

 

Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Park & Recreation Standing Committee 

Non-Profit Organizations 

Community Organizations & Volunteers 

Community Sponsors and Partnerships 

Discovery Bay Businesses 

Town Staff 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item D-1



 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

Parks and Recreation Committee 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

October 17, 2018 

 

Prepared By:     Mac Kaiser, Recreation Programs Supervisor 
Submitted By:   Michael R Davies, General Manager 

 
Agenda Title 
 
Community Center Parking Lot Additional Striping. 
 
 
Recommended Action 
 
Accept Staff recommendation to provide Community Center Parking Lot Additional Striping. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Town of Discovery Bay Community Center continues to host throughout the year a variety of large community 
gatherings that have grown in scope and size over the past two years.  With attendance at many of these events 
exceeding the current capacity of available parking on the Community Center grounds, Staff has been tasked with 
handling an increasing number of individuals parking where ever they can.  In many cases, these individuals are parking 
in such a manner as to prevent safety personnel, should the need arise, from gaining access to the facility and grounds.    
 
As Staff is currently in the process of restriping the parking stalls covered over from the repaving work performed earlier 
this spring, Staff, in working with a contractor, is proposing the additional work of striping key areas in the community 
center parking lot red in an effort to mediate the challenges of keeping these areas around the Community Center clear 
of vehicles and allowing open emergency access should the need arise. 
 
A schematic of the contractor recommended red striping plan is provided for reference.       
 
Accept Staff recommendation to provide Community Center Parking Lot Additional Striping. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Amount Requested  
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #   Category:         
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 
Golden State Striping Bid. 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: D-4 

Cinderella
Stamp



Agenda Item D-4



Agenda Item D-4


